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'3TART OF TAPE ·1, :3IDE A F e b r· u .::n' y 6 , i 9 9 0 

'VIRGINIA DURR: John L. Lewis as his PR man. 

[Lucy Randolph Mason] was also a great friend of Mrs. Roosevelt. 

T hen , at th t. . ... 'l h _ e s a me _ 1 me , ·-' o e c; e 1 c e r' s , w o was at the University of 

A l a bam a , a p r· of e s s or· of s c i e n c e of s om e k i n d , he got i n t e r· e s t e d 

1 n t h e 1 abo t"' u n 1 o n m o v em e n t t o o , a n d he •) o t t o b e he ad of 

something called the Southern something. Anyway, the two of them 

met over 1n Mississippi. They were having terrible strife over 

there, labor str1te, and the un1ons. And old Rankin was ra1s1ng 

hell and high water, and Jim Eastland, and that awful [Theodore] 

So there was a terr1T1c lot of bad labor go1ng on over 1n 

�1 ·i s s i s s ·i p p i . �;o .Joe Gelder's and �1iss Lucy wer·e, you know, 

So Miss Lucy, who is. 

JOHN EGERTON: How old was she at that time? 

VD: Oh, Miss Lucy, I reckon, was in her fifties. 

JE: You describe her 1n your book as already being a white 

hair·ed lady. 

''10: Well, she was, but I would say fifties. They 1 i ved 

right down the road from me. Her brother-in-law was the head of 

t h e b a n k , a n d he r· s i s t e r· w a s t h e i e a de t·· of t h e , [ 1 a u •:J h t e r· j w h a t 

f,:_:ishionable set there was in Alexandria, Virginia. She had the 

b ·i •:J•)est par·ti es and bi g•)est 1 uncheons. But �1i ss Lucy had •)one 

·i n t o •) o o d w o r· k s e a r· 1 y , y o u k now , a n d t r· i e d to he 1 p t h e 1 i t t 1 e 

girls who worked in the tobacco factory. But anyway, the gist of 

t h e  matter is that she got hold of Mrs. Roosevelt, and she got a 

p ,., om i s e o u t of �1 r· s . Roo s e v e 1 t t h at t h e FT e s i d e n t of t h e U n i t e d 

states, Mr. Roosevelt, would see them. So Joe and Miss Lucy went 



u p to H y d e P a r· k or· w h at e v e t" a n d h a d t e a o r· d i n n e r· o r' s om e t h i n 'd 

w·ith them. ::;ee, the thi ng about �1i ss Lucy was that she was a 

lady par em1 n ence, if you k now what I mea n . 

. j E : Y e s , s h e w a s a r' e a 1 v i r· 'd i n i a 1 a d y , w a s n 1 t s h e '? 

·vo: She was a lady if there ever was one. ::;;o they tal ked a 

•J r· e at d e a 1 . So the idea was co n ceived of havi n·d this--the 

p I" •2 s i de n t a l r· e ad y w a s f u r· i o u s a t t h e so u t h e r· n s e n a t: o r· s b e c a u s e 

t l"1 e y we r' e k i c k i n 'd 1 n t h e t e e t h e v e t'' y t h i n 'd he w a s t r' v i n 'd t o do • 

So thev got the idea of formi n g  a South-wide group of people. He 

w,:as all for' it. I t w a s r· i '3 h t a f t e r· he h a d t r· i e d t o '3 e t t'' i d of 

[Senator Waiter] George of Georgia, vou k n ow, a n d  they had beate n 

h·i m. So he was still fumi n ·3 about it. �; o a n y w a y , s u r· e e n o u '3 h , 

th•2v ·3ot it ·301 n·::J, a n d  all the labor' u n io n s  we n t  i nto it. e i 11 

Mitch, particularly, of the Mi n ers was very active. ::.ee, it was 

A n d t h e n .J o e G e 1 de t·· s , of c o u r· s e , w a s s t a t i o n e d 

t h ·� r· e , a n d h e h a d be e n b e a t up t h e r· e , y o u k n ow • That awful 

The n there was o n e  communist, I remember, his name was 

Rob Hal 1 eoy, you should see him now. He1s mar·r·ied to this 

rich girl up 1 n  New York a n d  he has a Caddy. 

JE: Ai n 1t n o  revolutio n ,  is there'? 

'VD: Revolution, he did n 1t want to speak about it. He 

called me up, said he wa n ted to see how I was . 

. ,J E : T h e r· e we r· e some s 1 s t e r· s , t o o , y o u me n t i o n e d 1 n you t" 

book, a couple of wome n who were communists, a n d  they passea out 

literature a n d  stuff. 11m tryi ng to call up their names. 

VD: Ja n e  a n d  Doily Speed. There were very few, o n ly two or 

t lH' e e c om m u n i s t s i n t he w h o 1 e Sou t h • A nd it r·eaiiy was a 

..... 
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tremendous undertaking because, you see, it was t h e  beginning of 

Roosevelt's anger. Very few realize, maybe t h ey do realize it, 

Roosevelt was a man of great, strong anger. 

.,J E : He had a h ot temper·, didn't h .c. '/ 

·v·D: Not only t h at, h e  wanted to •:J e t back at you. If you1d 

d one him wr·on•;J, boy, he wanted to •;Jet you back. 

JE: He was vindictive. 

'iJD: Yes, h e  really was. And thoug ht t h ose sout h erners h ad 

just really hurt h im in every possible way, you know, by ruining 

a-ll the t h ings t h at he wanted to •;Jet done. So Frank Gra h am got 

t o be t he p r· e s i de n t of i t [ t h e  �; o u t h e r ·  n C o n f e r ·  e n c e f o r ·  H u m a n 

V-Ie 1 far·e]. T h e n , of c o u r· s e , i t r· e a 1 1 y w e n t a 1 o n •:J f o r· s e v e t" a 1 

y;::;ar·s ver·y well until t h ey be·;Jan to r·ed bait it. T h en it •:Jot to 

b "" j u s t a me s s a f t e r· t h at b e c a u s e of t h i s con t i n u o u s s e r· i e s of 

It continued r·eall y up until t h e  war·. T h en after· 

that it. 

JE: Let me back you up to t h e  time before that big meeting. 

Y o u t e 1 1 1 n y o u r· b o o k a b o u t t h e  g r· o up of y o u n •;J s out h e r· n e r· s , N e w 

Deal South erners, around Washington w h ile you all were living in 

f..\ 1 e x a n d r· i a • T h ey ca 11 ed 
' '  "': 
1:nemse1ves t h e  �;outh et"n Policy 

Committee, and t h ey would meet occasionally at people's houses 

just to talk about problems and w h atnot. 

VD: T h e  South er·n Policy Committee, it met on a r·e·;Jul ar· 

b.':iSlS, It met downtown. T h at was L i s te r· Hi 1 1  and .Jonat h an 

Daniels. T h ey wer·e all str·ictly male, and t h ey al 1 met downtown. 

T h e y we r· e t h e  on e s t h a t s t a r· t e d t h a t p amp h 1 e t a b o u t t h e ::: o u t h , 

y o u  know. 



JE: The number one econom1c problem. 

VD: Now, the other group was a group of young southerners 

who were working on the Hill mostly. 

JE: Like Clark Foreman? 

V D : '1"1 h o we r' e t r' y i n g t o •::J e t r' i d of t h e p o 1 1 t a x , a n d w h o 

were politicking. 

. J E: Ted Goldschmidt . 

VD: He was with the Committee of. 

JE: What state was he from? 

VD: He was fr-om Illinois. e.ut he was one of those 

S e c r' e t a r' y of the I n t e t" i o r' , c o n n e c t e ci to them. That1s how 

big-­

I met 

Lvndon .Johnson . If you1d been reading about us in the. 

knew. 

. JE: I1ve hear-d about it, but I haven1t been t"eading that. 

VD: Well, he1s ·3ot ali this stuff about us, and people we 

\AI e 1 1 , we me t t h e m a 1 1 t h r' o u '3 h L y n do n .J o h n s on , a n d we me t 

Lyndon Johnson through Ted Goldschmidt. He was with the Interior 

Department, and he and Clark Foreman were 1n the Interior 

w.:'.lter. 

T h e y we r' e 1 n c h a r' '3 e of t he d a m s , y o u k n ow , a n d 

Of course, Lyndon lived for nothing in the world but the 

rural Colorado River. 

JE: Now, Goldschmidt was not from the South, though? 

VD: Yeah, from Texas. 

JE: Oh, Goldschmidt was from Texas, and Abe Fortus was from 

Memphis, and Clark Foreman was from. 

V D : H i s u n c 1 e w a s t h e e d i t or' of t h e C on s t i t u t i on , C 1 a r' k 

Howell. 

JE: And Arthur Raper was from Virginia, wasn1t he? 

4 



VD: No, he was from North Carolina. 

JE: And Cliff Durr was from here, and Hugo Black was from 

Alabama. All of these people were, in one way or another. 

VD: Lister Hill. 

.J E: Pa r't of that 

Including Lyndon Johnson? 

::;outher'n Policy Committee •:::JF'OUp, 

v D : �� o , I d on 1 t t h i n k L y n don w a s r' e a 1 1 y p a t'' t of t h a t . 

Lyndon never' was a person who'd go to regular meetings, 

[laughter] unless he ran them. 

JE: Aubrey Williams, was he 1n there? 

VD: Yeah, Aubrey would go sometimes. e. ut it was a 1 ot of 

s o u t h e r' n e r' s , and they .:::11 got together and they all 

responsible for getting that pamphlet out. 

.J E: That was in 138. It came out in June, I think, of that 

VD: And the Southern Conference [for Human Welfare], it--1 

think what people have never understood and taken seriously 

enough is the fact that it was backed by the president of United 

�:;t.3tes and it was his idea actualiy to be·:;:�in with. He did it 

tH:!cause he was mad as hell to use the expt"essi on, at the way 

they had been tr'eated by the souther'n sen.3tor's. 

an•:;:�ry with them . 

He really was 

. ,jE.: To make matter's wor'se, not only did they ·:;:�1ve him a 

hard time in the 1836 election and right on past there, but after 

t h a t p a m p h 1 e t c am e o u t i n ._t u n e , t h e y had t he of f - y e a r' e 1 e c t i on s 

1n 138 and the Republicans made bi·:;:� ·:;:�a1ns that fall. So just 

a b o u t t h r' e e we e k s b e f o r' e t h i s me e t i n •:;:! i n e. i r' m i n ·:;:� h a m , t h e r' e h a cl 
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b e •2 n a n e 1 e c t i o n at w h i c h s e v e r' a 1 s e nat or' s we r' e de f e at e d a n d a 

whole bunch of House sea-r.:s wer'e lost. 

salt in the wound, you know. 

·�10 : Weil, it was r'ubbing salt 1n the wound. 

s<:.'JY1n•d this because he1s my br'other'-in-lal•l, but I always felt 

Roosevelt used Hugo [e.lack) as one method of 'dettin·d back at 

them. 

�E: Now, he was in the Senate, wasn1t he? 

VO: He was in the Senate but he had stood by Roosevelt all 

the way. 

packin·d· 

6 u t he h ad p a r' t i c u l a r' 1 y s t o o d b y h i m 1 n t h a t c o u r' t 

So that was the thin•d that I think pr'obably made 

Roose v e 1 t m or' e 'd r' a t e f u 1 • 

J E: When was he appointed to the court? 

VO: He was appointed to the court, it seems to me, 1n 138. 

JE: Could it have been 1 3 7? I can check this. 

VD: He was about to run for the Senate, and we were down 1n 

A.l abama. �1y little sister' was bein·d insulted all the time. I 

r'emember' that. Then al 1 that bi •3 to-do came about the f<u f<l ux 

f<'l an. I t h i n k t h a t w .3 s , w h e n w a s t he f i r' s t me e t i n 'd of t h e 

Southern Conference for Human Welfare? 

,,J E: It was 1 n the fa 1 1 of I 3 8 • 

VD: Wel 1 thi s was I 3 7 the year' befor'e ' ' . 

,J E: And when he went on the cour't ' 1 5 that when .John 

Sparkman was appointed to take his place, or how did Sparkman get 

1n the Senate? Who took Hugo1s place as a senator? 

VD: I thought it was John Bankhead, wasn1t it? 
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.J E: Did the y  move Bankhe ad fr·om the House ?  Did he g e t  

appoint e d  to the Se nate? 

vo: We ll, I have to think way back. L e t1s se e .  Liste r· 

took his old place . 

. J E : We 1 1 , w h o w a s t h e o t h e r· s e nat or· t h e n ? 

VD: John Bankhe ad. 

JE: I thought he was 1n the House. 

VD: That was Bill Bankhe ad, you1re thinking about. This is 

.John Bankhead. Bi 11 Bankhe ad was the Spe ak e r· of the House, but 

John Bankhead was the brothe r. Rather crook e d  p e ople, too. 

JE: And which one was Tallulah1s father? 

VD: Bill Bankhead. Tallulah and Euge nia. 

JE: And he was the Spe ak e r  of the House? 

;'liD: Y e s. And they use d  to always say, 11Vou can alw.'=.lys t e ll 

Eugenia and Tallulah apart. Eugenia 1s the one that marr1e s  and 

T a 1 1 u 1 a h d o e s n 1 t . 11 [ L a u •::J h t e r· J E u •::J e n i a m a r· r· i e d f i v e o r· s 1 x 

times. 

JE: So John Bankhead was a se nator, and Hugo was a se nator, 

and Hugo went to the Supreme Court, and List e r  Hill was. 

vo: And that 1s just as much as I r e m e mber. 

OU•:Jht to check . 

. ,JE: Y e ah, I will. 

[ Inter·r·uption) 

You know, you 

:So the r·e por·t came out, the pamphle t, about the numb er· one 

e conom1c condition 1n the summer of I 3 8, Was it alre ady 

d e t e r m i n e d at t hat t i me , h ad t h e sou t he r· n c o n f e r· e n c e f o r· H u m a n 

Welfare actually be e n  organized by the n? 



'"''D: We o r· '3 a n i z e d i t a t t h e me e t i n ·3 1 n e. i r· m i n '3 h a m . 

Graham was elected president. 

JE: And that was the first time that anybody had ever come 

t o '3 e t he r· ? 

VD: Yeah . 

. JE: Who planned all that'? 

V D : I j u s t t o 1 d yo u , �1 r· s . Roo s e v e 1 t a n d L u c y R a n do 1 p h a n d 

Joe Gelders, and the president of the United states. 

JE: Yeah, but, I mean, those are the people who had the big 

idea. I mean, who were the people who made all those plans. 

VD: Oh, Joe Gelders was one. He was right there, and Miss 

Lucy. But I think that largely it was supported by the Miner1s 

Union and Bill Mitch . 

. JE: The CIO and all of that? 

·vo: Yeah. Because, vou see, the unions wer·e just com1n·3 

:'3 o u t h , i f v o u r· em e m be r· , a n d t he y we r· e b e i n g f o u '3 h t p r· e t t y h a r· d . 

.t-\ n d ,.J o h n L . L e w i s w a s e x t r· e me 1 y '3 e n e r· o u s a s f a r· a s he 1 p i n ·3 w a s 

concerned, any way he could. And Bill �1itch is dead now, but he 

was very active and very supportive. And another person that was 

very active was Myles Horton, who just died. 

.JE: Right. He was there, wasn1t it, that November? 

VD: Ves, and he was ver·y active. And �1aur·y Maver·ick was 

ther·e. He got to be the head of the anti-poll tax committee. 

JE: I went to that auditorium not long ago. You know, it1s 

s t i l 1 t h e r· e j u s t e x a c t i y l i k e i t w a s t h e n . T h e b u i 1 d i n g 1 s b e e n 

r·E:!modeled and all that, but you can walk inside thet··e and it 

looks exactly -like it must have looked r·ight then. That lon·3 
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center· ,:.>isle that comes r·i 'dht up fr·om the str·eet 1 evel. You go 

down some steps, and r·ight down the center· of the thing to the 

:d:age. They must have had seats down on the floor, did they not? 

VD: Y./ell, there wer·e black on one side and white on the 

other·. That's the main thing I remember. �;unday night, as you 

w ,'.'SJ 1 ked 1 n , a n d F r· a n k G r· a ham mad e t h e f i r· s t s p e e c h , i t w a s 

It was mixed on both sides. The next morning, as we 

came 1n, it was segregated, and they had police all around. 

JE: Was Bull Conner there? 

VD: Yeah. 

.J E: Did you know who he was at that time? 

notorious figure then, as he came to be later? 

\0/as he a 

VO: No, he was just police. But we realized that we were 

surTounded by the police, and they r�ot up and they said, you 

know, if anybody cr·ossed the aisle that they would be taken to 

j ail , and they had the black mariahs outside waiting for us . 

. JE: That was the name that they gave to their· secr·et 

pol ice? 

VD: No, black mariahs were the police vans to take you to 

ja·il, the vehicles. 1 don 1 t know why they called them black 

rna r· i a h s • And that was when Mrs. Roosevelt took the chair and put 

it in the middle of the aisle, you know. 

.J E: Do you remember that? You have a vivid mental picture 

of her doing that? 

'liD: Yes. S he j u s t t o o k a n o 1 d f o 1 d i n 'd c h a i r· a n d j u s t 

plunked it right in the middle of 
I I ¥ -

"tne a1s1e. 

JE: And sat down there. 
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vo: A n d n o b o d y d a r' e d t o a r' r' e s t h e r' e i t h e r' • ::;he was a 

remarkable woman. 

JE: Miss Modjeska Simkins told me, when I talked to her up 

at Bi r'mi n·3ham when they had the homecoming r'e union '3 r'OUp, she had 

E� r'eco 1 lection that--let me see if I can find it he r'e. She \Na s 

not at that meeting, so this 1 s hear' say, and 11m a little 

:::;keptical of this, but this is v-1hat she sa·id. 11 �1 r' s . Roose v e 1 t 

a :::; k e d f o t·' some c h ,3 1 k a n d a r' u 1 e r' , a n d t h at s h e m a r' k e d t h e m i d -

line in the line, and sat her' chair' r'ight astr'addle the line.11 

VO: I don1t remember that. She just put the chair there. 

she didn1t mark it. T he t h i n ·3 w a s t hat s he w a s d a r' i n '3 t h e m to 

a t" r' e s t h e r' , a n d t h e y d i d n 1 t a r-r- e s t h e r' . 

a ·1 1 a r' o u n d t h e me e t i n '3 h a 1 1 • 

::;; e e , t h e r' e we r' e p o 1 i c e 

JE: Do you have a picture 1n your mind of that meeting hall 

itself? 

vo: Very vivid, it was a long time ago, but I can remember. 

The thin•;) about it was that Sunday ni·;3ht had been extr'emely 

pleasant. Frank Graham had made a very fine speech. It had been 

It was about the fi r'st unse·;�r'e•3·3ted meeting I 1 d 

ever been to in the South. Then the next morn1ng, we walked 1n, 

we we r' e s u r'r' o u n de d b y p o 1 i c e , a n d t h e b 1 a c k m a r' i a h s we r' e a 1 1 

around the building, and we were told that if broke the 

s e g r' e •3 at i on 1 a w 1 n a n y w a y , s h ,3 p e , or' f or' m , we 1 d be t a k e n to 

j a i 1 . They announced that from the podium. So that changed the 

whole atmosphere, and the atmosphere after that got very tense. 

It meant that ther'e was se·3r'e9ation, and the people could 90 up 

on the platfor'm. Like Mrs. Bethume could 90 up on the platform, 
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a n d t h e y co u 1 d n 1 t s e 'd r· e 'd a t e h e r· f r· om t he w h i t e p e o p 1 e on t he 

p 1 at for· m. She was glad to say what she had to say. ::;he had 

plenty to say too [laughter] . 

. J E : Y o u sa i d 1 n yo u r· b o o k , I 1 m q u o t i n 'd yo u , 11 T h i s me e t i n g 

was full of love and hope. I t w a s t h r· i 1 1 i n 'd • 

sE:emed to be coming together· to make a new d.3 y. 11 

vo: That was sunday night. 

The whole South 

JE: Most have been an exhilarating feeling to see that. 

V D : I t r· e a 1 1 y w .3 s b e c a u s e , t h e t h i n g w a s , t hat t h e r· e we r· e 

just so many people there that you knew and loved . 

. J E : And t h e n be s i d e s t hat , t he r· e we r· e a 1 1 t h o s e p e o p 1 e yo u 

didn't even know, and they were obviously a part of that 

movement. Did it 'd1ve you a sense of r·eal hope about the South 

being able to work out its own problems. 

vo: It certainly did. I can just remember feeling a sense 

of real ex.3ltation. Gut 1 don: t think it 1 a steel all the way 

t lrr· o u 'd h b e c a u s e , 1 e t 1 s s e e , �1 r· s • R o o s e v e 1 t s p o k e t h at n i g h t a n d 

then Hu·do spoke. A f t e r· M r· s . R o o s e v e 1 t s p o k e a n d a f t e r· H u 'do 

s poke, the p.3per·s came out with just the v1c1ous lot of, you 

know, 1 i e s . 

. J E : You don 1 t , by any chance , s t i l l have any paper· s f r· om 

that period, do you? Like, for example, a copy of the program or 

the proceedings or anything. 

vo: No, 1 wish I did have but I don't. 

. J E: Let me mention some names to you . I1d like it you 

w o u 1 d - - o b v i o u s 1 y s om e of t he s e a r· e go 1 n 'd t o b e p e o p 1 e w h o we r· e 

not there, and you can just say as far as you know they were not 
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t here, or you don1t have any recollection. e.ut if I call a name 

of somebody who you remember as being involved, just tell me what 

y o u r' e rn e m be r' a b o u t w h a t t'' o 1 e t he y p l a y e d . 

�1cAll i ster'. 

Y o u me n t i on e d F r' a n k 

VD: I just couldn1t stand him because he began to red-bait 

almost immediately. He was a socialist. And there was another 

fellow whose name I can1t r'emember', also a socialist, but they 

began to red-bait almost from the first day. I didn1t know who 

they wer'e fr'om Adam1s house cat, and he asked me if I would let 

them dr'ive me home. See, my mother and father lived in 

S o t h e y d i d d r' i v e me home , a n d a 1 1 t h e w a y h om e he 

was asking me did I realize that the whole thing was a communist 

plot and, you know, the people were communist. \oliell, I disliked 

r·dm immediately. I never' have 'dotten over' dislikin·d him. I 

don1t know whether' he1s even dead or' alive now, but I just 

remember after the feeling I had had of such a beautiful sort of 

love-feast, and to have that start so soon . 

. jE: And that was just one of the little inter'nal splits 

that eventually came out. 

VD: \A/ell, the socialists hated the communists and v1ce 

v �'2 i'' sa . I f t h e y e v e r' '::::! o t t o 'd e t h e r' , i t w a s a 1 w a y s b o u n d to b e a 

f i •;::Jht. 

.jE: What about H. L. �1itchell, was he ther'e'? 

VD: Oh, he was a darling man. He just died recently. His 

w i f e s t i l l 1 i v e s h e r' e 1 n �1 o n t 'd om e r' y . I c a 1 1 e d h e r' u p j u s t t h e 

other day, poor thing, she1s so lonely now that he1s dead. 

JE: Was he there at the meeting? 
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vo: I can1t remember if he was there at the meeting or not. 

H >'? w a s a soc i a 1 i s t , b u t he w a s n 1 t t h e k i n d who w a s a 1 w .3 y s r' e d -

baitin·:;:t, but he was an actual socialist and believed it ver'y 

f i r'm l y • 

JE: What about Howard Kester? 

'VD: We l 1 , I n e v e r' k n e w h i m v e r' y we 1 1 • He was with the 

church ·:;:tr'oup. 

JE: Was he at that meeting? 

VD: If I recollect right, he was. 

JE: And y o u s a i d �1 y 1 e s H or' ton w a s t h e r' e . An Aubr'ey 

Williams was there. Te 11 me about Aubrey Williams, what 

recollection you have of his role in that particular thing? 

VD: He red-baited some himself at the time. He made sor't 

of a joke of it, as I r'ecail. 

JE: He was a rather humorous fellow? 

VD: Ver'y funny. 

.J E: Good sense of humor', Clar'k For'eman, of cour'se, was 

there and took an active role? 

·vo: Very active role. Indeed, he 1 ater' •:;:tot to be head of 

it. He came from a very aristocratic, rich family in Atlanta. I 

never thought he was myself, l1d known him a long, long time, but 

some people did think that he was sort of arrogant and rich. He 

really wasn1t rich. He was a little arrogant maybe. 

JE: Will Alexander? 

VD: Oh, I knew him well. I think he was at that meeting, 

but I r'emember' 1n Washin·:;:�ton, he w.3s a ver'y n1ce man. 

some sort of an organization in Atlanta for a long time. 

He had 
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JE: The Council on Interracial Cooperation. 

VD: Then he and his wife split up and took up with another 

girl, and that was a kind of scandal 1n Washington in those days 

[ ·1 au·3hter'). 

JE: Willis Weatherford? You don1t remember him. Virginius 

o . .:.lbney? 

'liD Y e s , I k n e w h i m we i 1 t o o , b u t not t e r' r' i b 1 y • 

1 i v e d i n V i r' •:J i n i a , y o u k n ow , a n d V i r' g i n i a E p i s c o p a 1 T h e o i o g i c a 1 

S•E:mi nar'y. Vir'ginius Dabney, we wer'e a1w.:ays tr'yin·:J to •:Jet to 

support the anti-poll tax movement. He never would. �;o he and I 

had many a conver's.:ation, not a conver'sation but wr'itten, but he 

n•:::ver would. 

.,J E : Did he come to that meeting 1n Birmingham? You think 

he was not there? 

VD: No, he was not there. 

JE: Jonathan Daniels? 

VD: No, .Jonathan Daniels and Ralph �1cGill and Hoddin•:J 

Carter weren1t there. 

JE: None of these journalists came to this? 

VD: Well, no, they didn1t. Not only didn1t they come, but 

unfortunatei y for' the Souther'n Confer·ence, they eli d a •:JOod deal 

of red-baiting, too. 

JE: Ali of them? 

VD: Well, yeah, l1d say they all. 

JE: Jane and Dolly Speed? 

VD: '1.1/ell, that1s the two communists. They came fr·om 

�1ont9omer·y. They were of the Baldwin family which is one of the 



old, wealthy families her'e 1n �1ontqomer'y, And Dolly took Jane 

[her daughter] to Vienna because it was cheaper to live in Vienna 

1n those days, and her husband had died. 

Louisville where there was this Speed Museum. 

She came fr'om 

JE: Big, important family 1n Louisville. 

v 0 .: We 1 1 , a n y w a y , t h e y m a y h a v e bee n b i g a n d i m p or' t a n t b u t 

they were poor as Job1s turkey. So she took them, her' boy and 

her daughter, to Vienna to educate them. And while they were 1n 

Vienna, the Nazis came, and Jane got to be a communist. So did 

Dolly. Then when things that dangerous, they came back here to 

Montgomery to Mrs. Reed, her sister, who had a lovely place here. 

JE: They were not married, either of them? 

V 0 : \•/ e 1 1 , D o 1 1 y w a s k i n d of e l d e t" 1 y t o •:J e t m a r' r' i e d , a n d 

Jane got married to, I think he came from Puerto Rico or 

someplace. 

JE: And Rob Hall ended up drivinq a Cadillac, married to a 

rich woman. He was the communist leader of Alabama at that time. 

vo: That1s r'i•:Jht. He ended up mar-r-y1n·;J a•;)Eiln and having 

two chi l d r' en . 

Exeter', I think. 

Two boys, one went to Andover' and one went to 

He h a d a cad i 1 1 a c , a n d he had not h i n •::J f u r' t h e r' 

to do with communist, you know, radical Maoist . 

. JE: Howar'd Lee? 

vo: Well, Howar'd L"'"' was a sweet boy. He came f r'om 

A r' k a n sa s , a n d he w a s a r' e a 1 k i n d of a c o u n t r' y b o y . He had a 

passion for' �1r's, Rooseve-lt. He used to keep her' mi r'r'Or' by his 

b ''� d , a n d he :i u s t 1 o v e d he r' d e a r' l y . As I r' e c a 1 1 , he com m i t t e d 



�:;uicide, but nobody ever· can r·emember·, knew why he committed 

sLI'icide. 

JE: Alton Lawrence? 

vo: Alton was a lovely boy, young. He went to the 

University of North Carolina, and he was very radical in a way, I 

3uppose. He marTi eel a •:Ji r·l who wor·ked in the mi 1 1 . 

called down to New Orleans--Jim Eastland, you know, C 1 at·· k 

F o r· ern a n , a n d me , a n d Au b r· e y \•i i 1 1 i am s --he n e v e r· w a s c a 1 1 e d d ow n • 

\A/e. thou·:Jht that was ver·y str·an9e, and I think he bec.::1me an 

·informer·. I hate to say that, that he saved himself from 901ng. 

J\nd he told me it was because his wife couldn1t take it. Now, 

whether· he actual1 y infor·med or· just r·efused to--I just know he 

disappeared off the face of the earth. I haven1t seen him since. 

JE: Mrs. Bethune? 

v o : 0 h , �1 r· s . Bet h u n e w a s j u s t 1 i k e a •:J r· eat , y o u k now , 

A f r· i c a n 1 i o n e s s • s h e w a s a v e r· y 1 a t·· •:J e , s to u t w om a n w h o h a d 

tremendous amount of stren9th. She1s the one that--I was working 

1n the democr·atic committee, the women1s division, and we wer·e 

all working on gettin9 rid of the poll tax because the women had 

a hard time voting. 

and they didn1t have 

You see, the men didn1t pay their poll tax, 

much money. So she said we had to 

t o •:J e t he r· w i t h t h e b 1 a c k s . s o s h e 9 o t u s to 9 e t h e r· w i t h p e o p 1 e 

1 i k e C h a r· 1 i e H o u s t o n a n d B i 1 1 H a s ti e . Then Jim Farley said we 

cou 1 dn1t do it in the democratic committee because it was makin9 

the southerners so mad. So we had to get out and do it outside 

the committee, I mean, fight a9ainst the poll tax. 
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.jE: (Jne anecdote you tell 1n the book 1s that Jud·�e 

C:har'lton who was pr'esidin·� spoke to �1ar'y e.ethune and said, 11�1ary, 

would you like to come to the pLatfor'm'?11 

until they called her Mrs. e.ethune. 

And she wouldn1t come 

That1s absolutely true. 

r.1 r' s • e. e t h u n e • 

S he w a s not �1 a r' y . 

JE: What about Louise Charlton? What was she like? 

She was 

vo: She was a ver'y n1ce, able woman. Somehow, she just 

disappeared after, never saw her aga1n after that meeting. 

JE: What kind of judge was she? 

vo: I think she was kind of a . 

. J E : M u n i c i p a 1 j u d ·� e o r' s om e t h i n ·� h e r' e 1 o c a 1 1 y , I me a n 1 n 

e ·] r' m i n g h a m ? 

Some sor't of a. After that meeting, I never saw 

h .=.:� r' a ·� a i n • 

JE: Maury Maverick was there? 

vo: Maur'y was ther'e, and he was wonder'ful. He always was 

terTific . He 1s the one that introduced the bill to get the poll 

ta x . That was the first thing we did, you see. 

JE: John L. Lewis come to that meeting? 

vo: No. Bill Mitch was there. 

JE: Claude Pepper was there, wasn1t h�? 

vo: r�o. 

.J E: You don 1 t think so? I know he came to some of the 

1 ater ones. In fact, he was given the .Jeffer'son Awar'd at the 

last one of those meetings. 

VD: He didn1t come to the one in e.irmingham, as I recall. 



JE: of course, Hugo Black was there. 

VD: Hugo was the ma1n one, and Mrs. Roosevelt. 

,J E: Lister Hill ther·e? Any other· office holder·s? The 

governor of Alabama came, Bibb Graves. 

VD: I don1t remember him . 

. J E : S om e p 1 a c e I r· e ad t h a t h i s w i f e w a s t h e on e who t o o k 

.:.:1 ·1 1 t h e 1 a d i e s a r· o u n d f o r· a t o u r· of t h e c i t y . It was like a 

social event or something. 

'VD: I think that1s wrong. I never remember that. Yeah, l 

think that1s wrong, and I don1t think Bibb Graves came. You1ve 

got to remember that, l told you about the love and affection and 

the feeling of thrill on the first night. By the second day when 

t h e y 1 d be ·;;J u n t o t h r· eat e n u s w i t h p o 1 i c e a n d a 1 1 , t h e p a p e r· s h ad 

also begun to be very hostile. 

JE: John Temple Graves ironically ended up introducing Hugo 

black, because the per·son who was supposed to was ill. And John 

T ;_:! m p 1 e G r· a v e s , w h o a t t h a t t i me w a s s a y 1 n ·;;J a 1 1 k i n d s of n 1 c e 

things about all this, even in the paper he did, but later one he 

wouldn1t touch them with a ten foot pole. 

'liD: Yes, not only that, he wanted to clear· himself of any 

kind of [laughter] dealing. 

JE: Mark Ethridge? Barry Bingham? 

VD: Not that I remember. Now, I may be mistaken about that 

because I don1t remember their being there. Now, I can r·emember· 

them as being in Chattanooga because they were trying very hard 

[Jnten·uption] 



.At 1 a n t a - -t he U n i t e d �1 ·i n e \•i o r' k e r' s , at t h a t t i me , w a s v e r' y 

anti-war'. I n o t h e r' w o r' d s , t h e y we r' e a 9 a i n s t t h e w a r' e n t i r' e 1 y . 

\•/;::!11, you know, the pr'esident was for' the war'. so h e w a s v e r' y 

rnuch a·;:tainst the coal people. So Barry came down, and they were 

trying to keep the convention from pass1ng a declaration against 

the war'. You see, also at that time the communists, such as 

they were, were also against the war. It was during the period 

of the Ger'man war'. :::;; o B a r' t'' y a n d �1 a r' k we r' e down t h e r' e , f or' t he 

Pr'esident of the United States, trying their damnest to keep this 

or' •J ani z at i on f r' om p a s s i n •J a r' e sol u t i on for' peace a n d a •J a i n s t w a r' . 

·�-IE: I see. 

'1/D: I can remember fighting for that, 1cause they did. The 

r eason, it seems to me, the president was so much more engaged in 

·i t t h a n p e o p 1 e h a v e e v e r' g 1 v e n h i m a n y c r' e d i t --m a y be he d i d n 1 t 

want to be known that he was en9aged in it--was, as far as he was 

c o n c e r' n e d , a 1 1 h e h a d [ l a u g h t e r' J • 

to depend on. 

He didn1t have anything else 

I1ve been some of ,.John Temple Cir'aves 1 

newspapers and other people1s papers from right around that time. 

VD: 

.J E: 

They were out to 9et us. 

8 u t t h e y we r' e n 1 t t h e n . \•/hat went 1 n the newspaper' 

durin9 that immediate time was essentially. 

VD: They changed later. 

.,J E : Yeah, I know. e.ut 11m talkin·;:t about that week. I 1m 

talkin·;:t about all these fifteen hundr'ed people who came down 

the r' e , and as i de f r' om the p o 1 i c e and that one i n c i ci en t about 

segregation, it was a very favorable beginning. 



VD: \•le 1 1 , that1 s t r' ue. lt was. But then they t u r' ned 

1 ater'. [ Lau·:::�hter'] . 

.J E: Then ever'ybody eventual 1 y fe 1 1 away It i 1 the poi nt 

wiHsr-e, if you ·:::�o all the way up to ·j 950 and look, most of the 

people who were in that room wouldn1t identify with that 

movement, with integration or any kind of racial thing. 

-vD: 

being caught up in it. 

r e r-r- i b 1 e t h r' e a t of i t a n d 

JE: Did you think or do you think now as you think back on 

it that the Southern Conference for Human Welfar-e 1n the 

beginning had an interest in eliminating segregation? 

vo: Ver-y much so. 

. J E: It didn1t come out much in what was said there . rher'e 

was not much talk about doing away with the institution of 

I mean, people came at it fr'om differ'ent w.:ays. 

They talked about the poll tax as bein·:::� discr'imination a·:::�ainst 

w hite and black alike. They talked about the lynching laws such 

being a meanness that ought to be done away with. They talked 

about the white primary as being unfair. That ever-ybody ought to 

h .. '.'.n'e the r'i ght to vote. All that, vou know, people under'stood, 

but none of that had to do with the institution of segregation, 

with segregated stores and restaurants and schools and churches 

and all that kind of business. 

'\10: Well, maybe it 1•1as under' stood r'ather' then enunciated, 

but I can1t think of anybody there that didn1t think that 

s•.:!gr'e•:::�ation was a ten'ible evil T h e f a c t t h a t �1 r' s • R o o s e v e 1 t 
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made such a point of refusing to accept it showed how we felt, I 

t h ·ink. Because she made such a drastic point. 

. J E: Yeah . I was struck, reading about the Southern 

Re•;3ional Council later' on 1n the 140s, when the Council was 

for'med in ·1944 and all the way up unti 1 almost the time of the 

Brown decision 1n 154, there official position was not to 

e ·1 ·i m i n a t e s e ·:F' ega t i o n b u t t o m a k e s e p a r a t e e q u a 1 . T h e y p u t a 1 1 

their emphasis on spending the money to upgrade the Negro 

s:c: hool s. 

'\/D: They did that, and not only that, they wer'e .3nti-

communist because they, Aubrey Williams, they wouldn1t let him be 

on the Council. He was proposed for it, and they put him on it, 

and then he was thr'own off. So then they asked Cliff, my 

husband, to be on. He said he waul dn 1 t be on as 1 on·� as they 

wouldn1t let Aubrey on . 

. JE: So your' r'ecol 1 ecti on of the Souther'n Re·�i anal Counci 1 

in the 140s was that it was a little bit to the r'i·�ht of wher'e 

your thinking was? 

VD: Yes, it was indeed. Nice people, but very much to the 

e.ecause they didn1t believe 1n, they didn1t fi·�ht for' 

i ntegr'ati on, and then they had this--which I thou·�ht was the 

silly fear of communists takin·� over'. 

p r' e t t y s i 1 1 y • 

JE: Yeah, look what1s happening now. 

I t 1 s t u r' ned o u t t o b e 

VD: I mean, not only wouldn1t they very well take us over, 

I me a n , 1 n t h e w a r' , b u t h a d n 1 t got e no u ·� h f o o d t o p u t on t h e 

table. 
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JE: What about Lillian Smith, was she at that meeting? 

VD: Oh no, oh, she probably was at that meeting. She was a 

v E: r' y 1 o v e 1 y p e r' so n 1 n m a n y w a y s , 1 t h o u ·;;� h t , b u t s he h a d a 

p a s s 1 o n , n o t a p a s s 1 o n , r' e a 1 1 y - - s h e n e v e r' h a d a p a s s 1 o n f o r' 

anybody except what's her name, the lady she lived with--but she 

was very devoted to this Frank McAllister. He had a tremendous 

influence on her', 

account of him. 

�;he got out of the Souther'n Confer'ence on 

JE: Is that right? 

VD: Yes, she just frankly got out. She said that Frank had 

gotten out, and she got out. Frank did as much harm as anybody . 

END OF TAPE 'i, SIDE A 



START OF TAPE ·1, SI D E  B 

VO: The whole thing was so ridiculous [laughter]. 

JE: But your recollection is that McAllister was not from 

the South. 

VD: No. The 1 ast time I heard of him teachi n·� was in 

college up in Chicago. 

.JE: ,.John Temple Gr·aves, accor·di ng to my r·eadi n·� on this, 

this was co-chai r·man of the Race Relations Committee for· 

confer·ence. He a n d F . D . Pat t e r· son , who w a s t h e p r' e s i de n t of 

Tuskegee, wer'e the co-chair·s of the committee that met dur·in•:J 

that week. 

VD: Well, he cer·tainly intr-oduced Hu·�o ver·y nicely, 1111 

�say that. 

JE: Oowbrowski was there, wasn1t he? 

VO: Yes, he was there . 

. JE: Was he chosen at that meetin•:J to be the executive 

secretary ot th1s. 

VD: No. 

JE: That came later. 

VD: That was later. I think Lee and Alton Lawrence, either 

one or both of them, were--! think it was Howard Lee. 

be the executive secretary. 

He 90t to 

JE: H. c. Nixon was there? 

vo: 0 h y e s , a n d he w a s w o n de r· f u 1 • ��ow, you ta 1 k about who 

ran it, you might say that he ran it more than anybody, if it got 

r· u n. H e w r· o t e a won d e r· f u 1 book , yo u k n ow , abo u t t he r· u r' a 1 

P ·i edmont. He was a lovely man. He was at Vanderbilt, I think. 
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1--h:� was extr'emely pleasant, deli·�htful and char'min·� man, but he 

got scared later on, and his wife just made him get out because 

she was just afr'aid on account of the childr'en. \o'/oul dn 1 t have 

anything to live on. But he di dn 1 t r'ed-bai t and he di dn 1 t say 

anything wrong about us. He just got out. 

JE: Gunnar Myrdal was there. 

VO: If he was there, I never met him. 

JE: According to the book, what1s that man1s name who wrote 

a book a b o u t t he :;:; o u t he r' n con f e t'' e n c e , he s a i d t h a t �1 y t'' d a -, w a s 

t h e �� e t'' e s e a r' c h i n ·� t h e book t h at he s u b seq u e n t 1 y p u b 1 i s h e d , t h e 

famous book on the American dilemma. 

V 0 : I n e v e r' • 

JE: Charles S. Johnson, the president of Fisk? 

VO: I knew him, only in a pleasant way . 

. ,JE: And Rufus clement who vvas the pr'esident of Atlanta 

Uni ver'sity? 

vo: Yeah, they wer'e ther'e. I knew .311 these people but, 

v o:::> u k now , I d i d n 1 t k now t he m e x t r' e me 1 y we n . See, we had a verv 

tight little group of people that became dear and darling friends 

and remained so until most of them died. 

JE: Who would you name in that group? 

V 0 : We 1 1 , c 1 a r' k F or' em a n a n d r e x G o l d s c h m i d t a n d C 1 i f f , my 

h u s band , a n d me , and �1 a t'' y F o t'' em a n , C 1 a t" k F o t'' em a n 1 s w i f e , a n d 

Ricky Goldschmidt, who was Tex1s wife, and then there was Aubrey 

w·illiams and his wife Anita. 

Lyndon and LadyBird. 

Let 1 see, and actual! y ther'e was 

JE: Was this back in Washington then? 
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VD: Yes, this is back in Washington. 

JE: What about those people like Jonathan Daniels, many of 

those? Did you all socialize with them? 

VD: Not at all It was a completely different group. Then 

t h e r' e w a s t h a t m a n who w a s a g r' e a t f r' i e n d of L y n d o n 1 s , c a r' o 1 s 

bE:: en v-w i t i n •:;:J about hi m 1 n hi s book so much . He says about we 

w •3:.: r' e a 1 l s u c h a c -, o s e g r' o up . 

we r' e n o t 1 n i t , we r' e ¥-H' on g • 

He named two ot" thr-ee peep 1 e who 

T h e n , of c o u r' s e , Abe F o r- t a s w a s 

t h e t" e , r' i g h t c 1 o s e l y a s s o c i a t e d • We j u s t had s up p e r' to ·:;:Jet h e r' 

often, 1cause we were great friends. I wouldn1t say Lyndon and 

LadyBird were, yeah, they were a part of it . 

. J E : Y o u we n t b a c k t o 1'1 a s h i n •:;:J t on , of co LH' s e , a f t e r' t h a t 

rneetin•:;:J. How lon•:;:J did you live in l'iashin·:;:Jton then? I can1t 

,.,,scall when you all moved to �1ont·:;:Jomer'y. 

VD: I moved to Washington 1n 1933. Hugo was 1n the Senate. 

Hugo got him [Cliff) to come up there to help open the banks. He 

was with the Power Company law firm then, and they were having a 

p r' e t t y t o u •:;:J h t i me [ 1 a u •:;:J h t e r' ] w i t h t h a t . S o h e we n t t he r' e . He 

thought he1d stay about two or three months, and we stayed twenty 

JE: So you all left there when? 

VO: 1 5 ·1 • 

. JE: Oh, you stayed until 15'1. 

here to Montgomery. 

That1s when you moved back 

VD: So we stayed 1 n \¥as hi n•:;:Jton al 1 that time. Then, you 

see, he went from the RFC to the Communications Commission. 



JE: Let me mention another period of time, now that I know 

you were still living in Washington, I wonder about some thoughts 

you would have on this. [ I n t e r' r' u p t i o n ] 

In the spr'i n•;J of ·1 950, now, I want to •;.11 ve you a few thi n•;JS 

to kind of jog your memory. That was the year that Claude Pepper 

was defeated in the Florida primary by George Smathers. 

'\I'D: Nasty son-of-a-bitch [laughter]. That was the vi 1 est 

thing I ever saw in my life. 

. J E: Yeah . That same spring, almost within a month of that 

cL:.::i t e , F r' a n k G Y' a h a m •;J o t b e a t . James F. Byrnes got elected 

·;;:�overnor' of South Car'ol ina, a ·;Jenteel r'aci st. 

plate racist, down to the marrow of his bone. 

VD: That1s right. 

He was a boi 1 er'-

JE: He went to the governor1s office as a bitter enemy and 

foe of T r' uma n. 11m thinking of that summer' and 

subsequently the election 1n the fall, the Korean War had 

started. The Dies Committee was •;JOH'i •;J full blast, and the 

S;:::nate1s Inter'nal Secur'ity Committee was ·;Jettin•;J into it. The 

w h o 1 e r' e d t h i n •;J w a s •;J e t t i n •;J c om p 1 e t e 1 y out of h a n d , a n d t h e r' e 

were court cases. 

'•ID: You see, Clifford was resigning then. He was 

f' ;;:� a p p o i n t e d 1 n I 9 4 8 b y T r' u m a n , a n d he r' e f u sed t o a c c e p t t h e 

appointment on account of the loyalty oath. He said he would 

have to administer the loyalty oath, and he thought it was wrong 

.::.1nd bad and unconstitution.3l. ::;;o he r'escinded. 

didn1t rescind, he just refused to take appointment. 

I me an, he 

T hen dur'in·;J 

t h a t y e a r' , ·1 9 4 8 -4 9 - 5 0 , he p t" a c t i c e d 1 a w 1 n \01 a s h i n •;J t o n . The r'e 
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were a whole lot of people who were 

that they never paid him anything. 

1n tr'ouble. The tr'ouble was 

So that's when we decided to 

come back to Montgomery. 

JE: We l l, I guess the question I'm trying to lead up to is, 

i t s t r' i k e s me a s a so r' t of c o LJr' a '3 e o u s t h i n ·3 f or' y o u a l l t o come 

back South at that point. T h i s w a s n 1 t a v e r' y s .3 f e p 1 ace f o r' 

people to be with the kinds of attitudes that you all had. 

vo: We didn't have any place to go. 

a very severe bone operation on his back. 

Vou see, Cliff had had 

So he had to come home 

'cause it's the only place--his mother' told him to come home 

until he ·3ot well. So there was nothing for us to do but come 

home. We had no place to go. I mean, we had a n1ce house, but 

�= couldn't pay it. 

JE: You couldn't make a living up there. 

VD: No. So we came home, and it was a year or more before 

he could even practice at all. We weren't courageous about doing 

it. It was just having to. We knew it was bad, and then we knew 

w h e n he t o o k t hose f i r' s t c a s e s , h e k new i t w a s 9 o 1 n '3 t o be b a d . 

But he took them just the same. Then, you see, when �1r's, Par'ks 

came on, he went down and ·3ot het·' out of jai 1, al thou·3h the NAACP 

had to handle the case . 

that? 

. J E : H a d s he be e n up t o H i '3 h 1 a n d e r b e for' e t h a t or' a f t e r' 

Yeah, I 90t her up there before that. If you r'ead the 

o l d 1 ad y f r' om C h a r' 1 e s t on who w a s s u c h a r' e m a r' k a b 1 e worn a n , s he 

says in her book that Mrs. Ourr 90t Mrs. Parks to Highlander, and 



I did. I was t he one who t old �1yles t o  invit e  her· up. Then 

Aubrey Williams gave her t he money t o  go on. 

JE: That was before 1955, wasn1 t i t ?  

v·o: Yes. 

JE: So t his whole idea of Mrs. Parks, who1s finally get t ing 

t ·j r· e d a n d s i t t i n ·� dow n a n d d e n y i n •:J t h o s e p e o p 1 e , t h at w a s n 1 t 

really t rue, was i t ?  I mean, she knew what she was doing. 

VD: She knew what she was doin·:J, and aft er· havin·� a visit 

t o  Highlander, she realized how it was worse t han ever. She just 

couldn1t st and it any more, you know, being made t o  stand up for 

.:;1 white man. But it was t ou•:Jh. I would have left, but Cliff 

wouldn1t leave. So, of course, I wouldn1t leave. But you see, I 

s t i l 1 d o n 1 t t h i n k t h e ::: o u t h 1 s a n y n e s t of [ 1 a u •:J h t e r· ] - - I t h i n k 

I don1t know how long i t 1s going t o  be before 

i t 1s not r·acist .  

JE: You and I aren1t go1ng t o  live t o  see �he day. 

VD: No, I don1t believe we1ll ever see t ha t  day. You know, 

11m makin•:J t he best of it no�n1, a lot of people I like and all, 

e. u t as far·· as t he :::ou t h act u a 1 l y be com i n •:J a 

[Laught er·] place of equalit y, I don1 t see i t  a t  all. 

.,J E : A·� a i n , j u s t t o 1 i n •:J e r' f o r· a m i n u t e o n t h a t p e r· i o d 

a r· o u n d ·1 9 50 , a s I 1 o o k b a c k on t hat , i t seems t o  me 1 i k e t hat w a s 

a low point in a way. Aft er t hose elect ion defeat s  and t he rise 

of t he a n t i - c om m u n i s t s t u f f a n d t h e ·� r· ow i n •:J a •:J i t at i on am on •:J t h e 

whi t e  power· s tr·uctur·e 1n t he Sout h  a·:;Jainst any kind of r·acial 

change, i t  JUSt seemed t o  me like t hin·:;Js, fr·om ·1950 unt il 154-

155, was just sort of like a quiet period where nobody did much. 
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And it took the court action and the people going 1n the street 

and marching to bring about the social change that we got. 

'VD: Oh, absolutely. There1s no doubt about it. rhe thin·;:) 

1 s t h a t t h e comb i n a t i o n of t he f a c t t h at �1 r' s . P a r' k s r' e f u s e d t o 

stand up, that was the sort of trigger point. But the thing that 

made it so amaz1n·� was that Dr', f<in·� would have come alan·� at 

exactly the same time. So her'e you have a man who speaks with 

the tongues of men and of angels or whatever. Just a rna r' v e 1 o us 

Ol"ator'. And h e c a n s t i r' p eo p l e up t he w a y he s t i rT e d t hem up . 

Perfectly remarkable . 

. :Jf: What time in 15'1, wh.3t time of year', did you all come 

here? [Interruption] 

'VD: ( 

JE: Yeah, that happened to a lot of people. 

VD: ( 

Jf: They never even knew anything was going on. 

\\I'D: Well, you see, when we got down her'e in 151, Cliff went 

I'' i ·� h t t o be d . 

JE: What month of the year was that? 

VD: It was in the summer. I think it was 1n June or July. 

He had to go right to bed. Then he had a doctor' 1 n Bi r'mi n·�ham 

who was his doctor', So he stayed up with his sister 1n 

e. i r'mi n·�ham. He stayed up there for about three or four months. 

Then when he came back down her'e, he had to swim ever'y day. I 

was taking shorthand and typewriting. Finally got a job. 

JE: Where did you work? 
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I worked at the insurance office of the state. \lole wer·e 

1 ·i v i n ·� i n my mot h e r· 1 s h o u s e w h i c h w a s n 1 t v e r' y f a r' . She had a 

great, big old house and two servants. So the children at least 

had, I had three children ( ) . I was lucky, but it was a 

b ad t i me be c a u s e t h e r· e w a s n o bod y 1 n �1 on t go me r· y a t a 1 1 t hat we 

could talk to that had any interest in anything we were 

interested in except Aubrey Williams, ) . 

�E: So did you see a lot of him during this time? 

vo: Y e s , c o n s t a n t 1 y , e v e r· y d a y . Aft e r· t h e .J i m E a s t l a n d 

t hing, you know, and being threatened, with Wallace being put in 

jail too, and he went on off back to Washington . 

. JE: He1s dead. 

vo: He was dyin·�, well ' he was dyin·� of cancer· of then. 

,J E: I s  his wife still living? 

'VO : i'�o' she1s dead too. 

.J E: Did they have chi 1 dr·en? 

vo: Oh yes, �1aur·y, \•li nston, ._1 e r· r· y, and--had feu r· boys. 

T h e r· e 1 s a v e r· y ·� o o d book t hat �1 r· . sa 1 m on d I•Jr' o t e . You haven1t 

seen that? \•/ell, you ou·�ht to ·�et it. It1s John Salmond. 

from Australia and he1s just finished a book on my husband. 

comi n·� out by the U n i v e r· s i t y of A. 1 a b a m a P r· e s s • You 

He1s 

It1s 

the 

t h i n g y o u 1 v e ·� o t t o r' e a 1 i z e f r' om o u r· p o i n t of v 1 e w w a s , i n t h e 

first place, none of us were communists, and we thought the whole 

thing [laughter] was absolutely insane. And the whole communist 

i'E!i.'H' was insane. 

.J E: I t  was a diversion. It had nothing to do with the real 

1 ssues. 
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VO: Had nothin·:J to do with the r·eal 1ssues, but mor·e than 

that, it was so idiotic. Cliff had been over there twice. Had 

been sent by the government, once for communications and once for 

somethin•:J else. And he came back and he said they don't have 

e n o u •:J h f u e 1 • T he y co u 1 d n 1 t a n y m or· e d e f e a t u s t h a n , i t 1 s 

·impossible . 

. ,J E : If you t h i n k of t h e y e a r· s ·1 9 5 ·1 , f r· om t he s u m me r· of 1 5 1 

unti 1 the summer· of 154, can you think of any involvements that 

you had that wer·e active 1 n these social 1 ssues, or· was that 

pretty much a quiet time for you? 

"<10: Well, the thin·:J was that's the time I •:JOt ivlr·s. Par·ks up 

to visit Highlander. cliff, when he started his law practice, he 

immediately became active in police brutality. These men would 

come 1n with him and pull up their· shir·ts, and you could see 

where the welts were. He was busy with that. Now, he never won 

any cases, but he •:Jot a lot of publicity fot" these, which they 

didn't like. But I had three children and I was working and had 

.::.:J job, 1 i fe seemed so busy to me that I can 1 t think of any 

particular. The only thing I can think of in that period 

was the terrific red-baiting. 

.,J E :  It just got worse and worse, didn't it? 

veah, just •:Jot wor·se, worse, wor·se. It spr·ead and 

spread and spread. George Wallace took it up. 

JE: Do you think there was a deliberate, consc1ous, 

intentional se1z1ng of that issue, the red-baiting issue, by the 

segr·e·:)ationists and the r·acists of the ::;outh 1n onler· to cloud 

the issue of social change? 
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VD: I don't think there1s any doubt about it. 

.J E: I me a n , o b v i o u s 1 y t he r' e w a s a p a r' a 1 1 e 1 It was a 

coincidental thing to the very least. But I wonder if you think 

that people like Geor-ge \•iall ace and Eastland and Tal mad·;:�e 1 n 

Georgia and these people seized upon the anti-communist thing as 

a way to disarm the people who were trying to get. 

VD: Oh, I don't think there1s any doubt about it. It was 

�:;o plain to be seen. ,.J i m East 1 and was r' u n n 1 n g f o t" Senate , and 

the Brown decision was about to come down. Okay, so what does he 

do? He finds me out, who is Hugo Black1s sister-in-law, then his 

son, young Hugo, who was working up in Birmingham. Then he gets 

hold of Aubrey Williams and Myles Horton and holds this hearing 

about the communist danger. That the Brown decision will prove 

that the Supreme Court is a communist outfit. ::;;o you see, they 

just use it all the time. 

[ Jnter'r'uption) 

Use it constantly. Dir'ty time. 

.J £ :  Run my theor-y by you, Mr's, Dun', and see if you think 

this holds any water. In ·1945 ther'e was so much ch.3n•;:�e in the 

w i n d a 1 1 o v e r' t he w o r' l d a s a c on s e q u e n c e of t he w a r' , t he e n d of 

t h e w a r' , t h e a t om i c bomb , n e w t e c h n o l o g y , t e 1 e v i s i on w a s j u s t 

corning into its own, air' conditionin·;:� had just arTived 1n most 

people's houses and was corn1ng to their cars--the whole society 

was bei n9 chan·:Jed. Air'planes, jet air-planes, I think 1n ·1944 

they had somethi n9 1 ike seventeen flights a day out of the 

1\tlanta air'por't, That's all. Now they have seventeen a minute. 

I mean, all of this stuff was just r'ight on the lip of chan•:Je. 

It was just about to happen. �1eantime, all these men had been 

32 



out of the South, had ·3one over' seas, had been 1 n new situations 

where they saw people living in different ways. \•/omen had been 

w o r' k i n g i n t h e f a c t or' i e s .3 n d w or' k i n '3 '3 o v e r' n me n t j o b s . 

was like it had been befor'e. 

r�othing 

And it seems now, as I look back on that period of the last five 

year's of the for'ties, that it was a ·3olden oppor'tunity for' the 

:::outh to make a 1 ot of social chan•3e, in ter'ms of r'ace and class 

and economic conditions of people and whatnot, voluntar'ily. To 

decide that the time was right and to go ahead and do that, but 

it didn't do it. It shrank away from doing that. The 

politicians prevailed, the governors and senators and congressmen 

pr'evailed, a·3ainst the pr'esident of the United States even, and 

p r' e v e n t e d soc i a 1 c h a n g e of t hat k i n d f t� om t a k i n '3 p 1 a c e . An d s o 

a s a c on seq u e n c e of o u r' f a i 1 u r' e t o do i t v o 1 u n t a r' i 1 y , t h e n we 

c .:.:1 me up on t h e t we n t y -f i v e y e a r' p e r' i o d t hat be '3 a n i n ·1 9 54 w i t h 

the Brown decision and that, indeed, goes on to this very day of 

unsettled, incomplete social chan·3e that people sti 11 ar'e not 1 n 

agreement about. So I'm looking at that little five 

as what our former President Reagan called a 

y e a r' p e r' i o d 

window of 

opportunity, a little hin·3e of histor'y, when thin·3s chan·3e fr'om 

a n o 1 d w a y t h a t 1 o o k s e s s e n t i a 1 1 y b a c k w a r' d t o a n e w w a y t hat 

1 ooks for'war'd. And 1n both directions the v1ew 1s rather 

f r' i '3 h t e n i n '3 • R i g h t t he r' e i n t he m i d d 1 e , t h e r' e w a s a c h a n c e f or' 

P'�:!ople to say--in other' wor'ds, it was the last oppor'tunity for' 

the South to fix its own social wa•3on, and it chose not to do it 

a n d a s a con s e q u e n c e , we ' r' e s t i 1 1 m i r' e d i n t h i s p r' o b 1 em . 

that make sense to you? 

Does 
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·vo: Well, it cer-tainly does make sense to me because I 

certainly think we1re mired in the same problems. 

a ·dlass of wine? 

\A/ould you like 

. J E: Yes, I would . If I wrote a book that essentially said 

that. [lnterTuption] 

I 1 m work i n ·� on , and 1 1 m 1 oo k i n ·� f N' p e op 1 e to t a 1 k to who 

can identify with that notion. That it was an opportunity lost. 

And you all were trying. You were trying your dead-level best to 

get people to move along on that issue, but it just wasn1t going 

to happen. Ther-e wer-e too many power-ful people who wer'e so 

immersed in the cultur-e of se·�r-e·�ation and r-acial inequity that 

they couldn1t give that up. 

VO: Yeah, but I also think that red-baiting had a lot to do 

with it. 

JE: But as you pointed out though, it was segregat1on1sts, 

it was racists, who seized on the red issue to work to their own 

E: nds. 

vo: That1s absolutely true. 

JE: So it all kind of worked together. 

VO: But the thin·� that bother's me today is--her'e is this 

great, big festivity for Mrs. Parks. 

w h i t e p e o p 1 e t h e r' e , j u s t a h a n d f u 1 • 

There were only a very few 

All the r-est of them wer-e 

b ·1 ack. [Inter-r-uption talking 1n background, someone else 

enters. Extraneous aside for a few minutes] 

JE: Let me ask you a little bit more about that auditorium. 

It 1 s 1 ike a hor-seshoe and ther-e ar'e seats all up, like 1 n the 

balcony, all the way ar-ound, and then ther-e ar-e the people down 
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on the floor', \"'' h e n M r' s . R o o s e v e 1 t s p o k e , t h e p a p e r' sa i cl t h e r' e 

w ;::: r' e s e v e n t h o u s a n d p eo p l e t h e r' e • That would fill the whole 

thing up, including the balcony and everything. 

that place as being full? 

0 o y o u r' em em b e r' 

vo: I do, indeed. l t w a s f u 1 1 f or' he r' , a n d i t w a s a 1 most 

a�> full for' Hu•:JO. 

JE: What about on that Sunday night when you started? 

V 0 : We l 1 , no , w h e n we s t .3 1·' t e cl , i t w a s n 1 t t h a t f u l 1. 

.JE: V.las ever'ybody clown on the floor', not up 1n the 

balconies? 

'11'0: Everybody was on the floor', And ther'e was a lot of 

kissing and hugging, glad to see you. 

And also s1 n•:Jl n·:J. lt was kind of like a bi9 camp 

rn�?.etin•:J almost? 

vo: Yeah. And then Frank got up and made just a wonderful 

speech, Frank Graham. 

JE: He must have been quite a fine man. 

VO: He was. A wonderful man. And he got beat just the way 

Claude Peppel·' got beat, by r'ed-baiting. Absolutely insanely 

r' ·i d i c u l o u s • They both got beat. Frank, with him particularly, 

it was just so absolutely 1nsane . 

. JE: Somethin•:J else about that auditor'ium that str'uck me, 

d u r' i n g t he d a y s of s e ·�F' e g a t i on t h e y had e n t r' a n c e s on t h e s i de , 

outside the buildin9, on both s1des, and the black people had to 

go in those door's and up the stairs and sit in the balcony for' 

like some kind of show or anything like that. 

in the crow1s nest. 

They sat up there 



VD: Well, 1 don1t remember that at the Southern Conference 

I remember so distinctly the division. 

JE: So 11m thinking, they must have come 1n the front door, 

though, j ust like everybody else did. 

VD: I think they must have too. 

JE: Particularly that first night when everybody was 

together on the floor. 

'VD : Well, it was a great beginning. Then you see the next 

rneetin·3 was in Chattanooga, and then the next meetin•:;:J was at 

Nashville. �� ow , N a s h v i 1 1 e , 1 r' em e m be r' , t h i s w a s on e of t he 

d ·j r'ti er·' thi n•:;:JS they did. l'-1r's, Roosevelt came down with Paul 

Robeson and he was going to s1ng. :::;o it was ail kind of nasty, 

d·!sgustin·:;:J, you know, the r'umor's about her' and Robeson. 

I don1t know how it got around, but it did. 

JE: She was a very courageous lady, wasn1t she? 

Rumor's, 

·vo: s h e c e r' t a i n 1 y "''a s c o u r' a '3 e o u s • �; h e w a s a v e r' y b r' a v e 

woman, but she was a woman who was unhappy. She1d had some sort 

of feeling of--it1s hard to express--you should read the book of 

her daughter. Sex was something terrible to her. Naturally then 

f o t'' he r' h u s b a n d to h a v e '3 one off w i t h a not he r' w om a n a s he d i d , 

was a terrible blow to her. 

JE: She was an unhappy person 1n her private life. 

VD: I think she was an unhappy person in her private life, 

n o t h e r' p u b 1 i c 1 i f e , b u t h e r' p r' i v a t e 1 i f e . 

like a Victor'ian maiden of some kind. 

Victorian that way at all. 

JE: As, alas, most men are not. 

1'-1 r' . R o o s e v e 1 t w a s n o t a 

N e v e r' h a v e b e e n . 
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·iJO: [Laug h ter') Never· will be. I do feel t h ou·� h ,  in h er· 

case, it was a ver·y sad t h at s h e  would ador·e a man as s h e  did, 

you know. Really worshiped him and feel just a sense oT love as 

she did for h im, and t h en h ave h im reject h er. But I t h ink s h e  

.. 1 t 
. 

t d t;".� r'e]ec e .  

,J E: Let me ask you somet h i  n·� else, �1r·s. DurT. Vf'it h a few 

>.:"!xceptions, t h e  people w h o  wer·e t h e  most active in t h e  Sout h er·n 

c o n f e r· e n c e f or· H u m a n 1•1 e 1 f a r· e we r· e w h i t e , m i d d 1 e a n d up p e r· c 1 a s s 

s o u t he r· n e I'' s , most of t he m , n o t a 1 1 I don1t guess H.L. Mitc h ell 

[laugh ter) h ad a lot of money any time or h is family background 

WEiS, but you take .Joe Gelder's w h o  was fr·om a wealt hy ,Jewis h 

family and Clark Foreman from a wealt hy family. Yo u r· f am i 1 y w a s 

n c> t we a 1 t h y a n d , i n fa c t , t h e r· e we r· e t i me s w h e n yo u a 1 1 h a d 

c o n s i de r' a b 1 e p o v e r· t y , b u t y o u we I'' e a n u p p e I'' c 1 a s s fa m i 1 y b y my 

understanding, and I t h ink yours, of w h at t h at means. 

VD: W h at it means [laug h ter) was t h at you were ric h at one 

time. 

. J E: T h at 1 s r·i ·� ht . It was out of a sout h er·n tr·adition of 

noblise oblisse or· patr·ician feelings. All of you had come out 

of a cultural experience t h at tried to rise above t h e  meanness of 

And y o u a 1 1 we r· e i d e a 1 i s t i c p e o p 1 e , t r· y i n g t o 

improve t h e  world. But it was essentially an upper middle class, 

white effort, wasn1t it, by and large? 

vo: We 1 1 , i t c e r· t a i n 1 y w a s , n o do u b t about i t • On t h e  

o t h e r h .3 n d , t h e  p e r· son w h o r· e a 1 1 y d i d t h e m o s t to c h a n ·� e t h e 

South was Lyndon .Jo h nson, w hic h was t h e  vote and t h e  federal 

t hi ng. Lyndon wasn1t upper class at all. Country boy, grown up 



in the hills. And I don 1 t think he had thou·�h ver'y much about 

I t hi n k that B i r' d maybe m i ·� h t have i n f 1 u en c e d hi m 

sorne � but I don 1 t think he thou·�ht about r'ace at all. 

you see, he lived up there where there wasn1t. 

f:,ecause, 

most. 

JE: But he ended up being the one who did the most. 

vo: T h a t 1 s r' i ·� h t . He ended up bein·� the one who did the 

I always thought Bird helped him. She never talked about 

it� but I always thought she did. 

,J E: You know, I had a notion one time, I ·�ot to thinkin·�· 

'1/0: You OU·� ht to •:J 0 and see her'. 

.J E: 11d 1 ike to� yeah, that's a ·�ood idea. I ·�ot to 

t hinkin·� one time that if you had elected the \4!1Ves of all the 

presidents we elected instead of men, we'd have had a lot better 

countr'y. 

'VO: That may be true. (Jn the other' hand� Lyndon did what 

h•-:. did, and how he did it 11-11 never' know, you know, to •:Jet that 

I just don't know how he did it. He was a ·�ood 

politician. I always say he m.3de a mistake on the Vietnamese 

\¥a r' . But if you ever' have a chance, if she'll talk to you, of 

cour'se � she 1 s ver'y. But she 1 i1 defend her' husband. I 

t h i n k i t w o u 1 d be i n t e r' e s t i n ·� to k now f r' om h e r' w h at he t h o u ·� h t 

about the race situation. 

JE: In this period of time, the 140s. 

'liD! Because, after' all, he Y.tas the one who chan·�ed it by 

passing the law, you know. And then not only that� he said when 

he passed the law, this is go1ng to be the end of this [laughter) 

Democratic Party. 
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JE: Harry Truman is a puzzling figure to me. Vou know, he 

w,:;;1s the one who insti·�ated a lot of this stuff, even mor-e than 

Roosevelt in some ways. Like dropping the race barriers in the 

Armed Forces and then that Civil Rights Committee that he formed 

in the 140s. And yet, I can 1 t find any clue at all 1 n r-eadi n·� 

b ooks about him that he really cared about this one way or the 

other. 

t hi ng. 

He di dn 1 t have any str-on·� feel i n9s about the r-acial 

·vo: Well, not only that, he was the one that did all the 

I think he did a great harm. I never had many kind 

feelings toward Harry Truman because my husband tried so many of 

these cases where these people were absolutely ruined and thrown 

out, and had actually done nothi n•:J whatever'. He had a woman, 

1111 never forget, a black woman, they said she was a communist. 

Found out she had ·�one to Geor'·�e \¥ashin·:Jton Univer-sity and was 

taking a course 1n culture or somethin9. 

JE: Some inanity. 

VD: That1s r'i•:Jht. They said she was a communist. Then it 

t u r' ned o u t t h a t t h e s e t w o w h i t e w om e n , o 1 d w h i t e r' a b b i t s , we r' e 

after her' because she was above them, and they thought it was 

t e r-r- i b ·i e for' w h i t e w om e n t o b e b o s s e d b y a b 1 a c k w om a n • They 

were just out to 9et her. And when it came down, you know, the 

f·in9er' was put on them and they wer-e discover-ed to be the ones 

w h o we r' e d o i n •:J a 1 1 t h i s d i r' t y w o r' k . () h , t h e y c r' i e d , a n d t h e y 

said they promised. Everybody had said they1d be protected. But 

it was so much dirty work going on. 

JE: It was a mean spirited time. 
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vo: Really mean spirited. 

JE: You knew Aubrey William really well? 

vo: Ver·y well. 

JE: That man wasn1t a communist, was he? I mean, that1s 

ludicrous, isn1t it, to think that he would have been? 

vo: ( 

.J E: And Cl ar·k For·eman? 

couldn1t have been communist. 

VO: Clark Foreman wasn1t . 

He 

. J E .: And I 1 v e k now n �1 y 1 e s H or· t on , l k n e w �1 y 1 e s H o r· t on f or· 

the last twenty-five year·s, and I would absolutely bet my ·last 

d·ime that man was never· a communist, not even 1n spir·it, let 

.::.1 ·1 one. 

vo: Well, it was so stupid. 

JE: There weren1t any damn communists in the South that l 

c o u 1 d t e 1 1 , e x c e p t h e r· e a n d t he r· e , you k now , a 1 i t t 1 e f r· i n g e 

·;J r· o up of p eo p 1 e • 

VO : The t hi n •:::J 1 s for· �1 y 1 e s and Au b t" e y , be i n •;J c a 1 1 e d a 

communist was absur·d. 

They certainly were. 

But they wer·e. T h e r· e 1 s n o doubt of i t . 

And �1y1 es, not that he 1 s died, I1 ve been 

reading the obituaries and even the New York Times has given him 

an obit u a r· y . 

ther·e . 

But when I think of all the times l used to go up 

. J E : 0 h y e a h , h e w a s - - I w r· o t e a 1 on ·;J p 1 e c e on c e a b o u t t h e 

trial of Highlander, put him on trial, you know. And it was the 

c om m u n i s t t h i n ·;J .::t n d t h e r· .3 c i a 1 t h i n •:::J s a 1 1 w r· a p p e d u p , b u t a 1 1 

they could find to t�eally nail 1•1ith was that they had a little 



And they stuck him for' sendi n·� beer' without a 1 i cense. 

Took away the charter. Took all their property out in the middle 

of a field and had an auction. ::;old ever'y last stick of 

f u r' n i t u f' e • 

VD: Burned down the building. 

JE: Just an absolute disgrace. 

VD: I wish you'd stay and have supper with us. 

JE: Well, I appreciate it very much. 

END OF TAPE ·1, SIDE B 

END OF HHERVIE\'1 


